
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL

Date & Time - Tuesday, 6 February 2018 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel:

Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), G R Aley, J R Astill, M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), 
C J T H Brewis, T A Carter, R Clark, G K Dark, P C Foyster, J L King, J D McLean, 
A M Newton, M D Seymour, A C Tennant and J Whitbourn

Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only 
from members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual 
meetings only. 

Quorum: 5

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   29 January 2018



A G E N D A

1 Apologies for absence. 

2 Declaration of Interests - Where a Councillor has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must declare the interest to the 
meeting and leave the room without participating in any discussion or 
making a statement on the item, except where a councillor is permitted 
to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation.

3 Pot Holes - At its meeting on 4 July 2017, the Panel raised concerns 
regarding the state of pot holes in roads in the area.  The Panel 
requested that an officer from the Highways Department at Lincolnshire 
County Council attend a meeting to advise what the County Council’s 
policy was with regard to the filling of pot holes, and to answer members 
questions.

The following representative will be in attendance:

 Georgina Statham – Highways Liaison Manager at Lincolnshire 
County Council

4 Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following 
meeting:

 Performance Monitoring Panel – 7 November 2017

(Pages 
1 - 12)

5 Questions asked under Standing Order 6 

6 Tracking of Recommendations - To consider responses of the Cabinet 
to reports of the Panel.

7 Items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

8 Key Decision Plan - To note the current Key Decision Plan (Pages 
13 - 16)

9 Quarter 3 2017-18 Performance Overview Report - To provide an 
update on Council performance for the period 1 October 2017 to 31 
December 2017 (report of the Executive Director Strategy and 
Governance enclosed).

(Pages 
17 - 38)

10 Catering Lease South Holland Centre – To provide background on why 
the decision to renew the catering lease had to follow the urgent 
procedure (report of the Executive Director, Place enclosed).

(Pages 
39 - 40)

11 Street Scene - To respond to a question raised at the Performance 
Monitoring Panel on 4 July 2017 in respect to how ‘Street Scene’ is 
undertaken and managed in South Holland (report of the Executive 
Director Place enclosed).  

(Pages 
41 - 46)



12 Enforcement Update - To provide members with an update on 
enforcement activity following the Place review (report of the Executive 
Director Place enclosed). 

(Pages 
47 - 52)

13 Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2017/18 update - To update 
members on the effect of changes made to the 2017/18 Council Tax 
Support Scheme (report of the Executive Director Commercialisation 
(S151 Officer) enclosed).
 

(Pages 
53 - 58)

14 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - To set out the Work 
Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel (report of the 
Executive Manager Governance enclosed).

Members are also asked to consider the following issue for inclusion 
within the Panel’s Work Programme:

 Public toilets – To consider setting up a task group to look at the 
locations, costs and refurbishment of all toilets within the district that 
are the responsibility of the Authority, and to consider their actual 
usage. 

(Pages 
59 - 66)

15 Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent - 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 7 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 7 November 
2017 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
J R Astill
C J T H Brewis
T A Carter

G K Dark
P C Foyster
R Grocock
J L King

J D McLean
A M Newton
M D Seymour

In Attendance:  Councillors M Chandler and G Taylor, The Chief Executive, the 
Executive Director Place, the Executive Manager Governance, the Communities 
Manager, the Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager, the Business 
Intelligence Officer, the Community Safety and Enforcement Manager, the Property 
Asset Manager, the Housing Options Manager, and the Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors R Clark and 
A C Tennant.

Action By
19 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were no declarations of interest. 

20 CHIEF EXECUTIVE UPDATE ON PROGRESS OF THE 
COUNCIL 

The Chief Executive had been invited to attend the meeting, and 
provided the Panel with an update on the Council’s progress.  
She gave details on the People Plan, confirmed that shared 
management with Breckland Council was in a good position, and 
that there was a stronger trend in partnership working.

With regard to programme delivery, she suggested that the 
Executive Director Commercialisation attend a future meeting of 
the Panel to explain the programme in more detail.

The following issues were raised:

 Members commented that the process for garden refuse and 
recycling was confusing for the public.

o The Chief Executive commented that there had 
been changes, and these would be communicated. 

 Due to the ongoing restructure, there had been a large amount 
of staff movement – was this affecting morale?

C Marshall, 
C Morgan 

RW 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



- 8 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

o The Chief Executive stated that she did not currently 
have any concerns however, there was an impact 
on those filling vacancies.  Consideration was being 
given to how recruitment was undertaken.  With 
regard to morale, the staff survey over the last few 
years has shown an upward trend in morale 
although a lot of change could result in a dip.

 Was the Authority finding it difficult to fill positions? 
o As with other authorities, SHDC could sometimes 

face recruitment issues. The Pay Policy at the 
Authority was being considered. 

 Members found presentations provided by Directors very 
useful – could these be expanded?

o The Chief Executive advised that the Directors could 
provide more focussed presentations on particular 
areas of interest to members.

 What did the Chief Executive feel was her greatest 
achievement and the greatest risk for SHDC as a small 
authority?

o The Chief Executive responded that she had a 
strong senior management team, and a strong 
relationship with the Leader of the Council.  She 
commented that cost-shunting was a risk.  
Financially, SHDC was in a good position however, 
other partners were under huge financial pressure. 

Members thanked the Chief Executive for her attendance.

(The Chief Executive left the meeting following consideration of 
this item). 

L E,
A G,
C Marshall, 
MO,
 RW 

21 CRIME & DISORDER UPDATE 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place and the Portfolio Holder for Communities and Facilities, 
which provided an update to Panel members on community safety 
and its delivery at county and local level.  The Portfolio Holder for 
Communities and Facilities, the Portfolio Holder for Strategy, 
Governance and Transformation, the Community Safety and 
Enforcement Manager and the Communities Manager were in 
attendance to provide information to members.

Members considered the information and the following issues 
were raised:

Page 2



- 9 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

 The report stated that the Anti-Social Behaviour Officer had 
dealt with 28 new cases between April and September, and 
that the current case load was now 26, suggesting that only 2 
cases had been completed.

o Members were advised that although there had 
been early intervention in all of these cases, they 
were not always easy to resolve due to many 
complex issues.

 Members of the public often fell victim to issues such as 
scams and cons – there had to be education so that people 
could take control in these situations.

o Members were advised that education was key to 
combat this area – partners were being worked with, 
awareness weeks were held and certain information 
could be targeted.  The public needed information to 
safeguard themselves.

 Members raised concerns regarding CCTV and how it was 
used to address anti social behaviour – the report provided a 
positive picture but members could not recognise this from a 
local viewpoint.  In their opinion the police response to 
antisocial behaviour was poor; the use of CCTV to survey 
antisocial behaviour was not sufficient. 

o Councillor Taylor commented that in some 
instances, there were operational issues for the 
police.  There were certain aspects of CCTV that 
could not be measured e.g. CCTV preventing crime 
taking place.  With regard to anti social behaviour, 
this should be addressed via the Police as it was an 
operational issue.  

 Crime always moved and criminal activity would always move 
to areas where there was no CCTV.  The Police had to use 
resources, including CCTV, in a more intelligent way.

o The Communities Manager advised that she would 
speak to the Neighbourhood Policing Team 
regarding this.  Members were also advised that due 
to antisocial behaviour in Crowland, the cameras 
there would be monitored more closely.  Crowd 
safety was also an area that needed addressing.

 Members questioned whether CCTV in Spalding provided 
value for money.  How many screens were being monitored in 
the South Holland area?

o The Executive Director Place responded that 
proactive, intelligent monitoring of CCTV cameras 
was required.  Officers would liaise with the 

EH 

Page 3



- 10 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

monitoring centre in Boston to ascertain how they 
were monitored.

 Public perception of crime was not positive.  Many victims did 
not report crimes as they felt it was not worth it.  The Police 
did not provide arrest information to Parish Councils, and this 
was disappointing.  

o Members were advised that there was a shared 
obligation with the Police in respect of community 
safety.  Members’ comments could be fed back to 
the Police.  

 Councillor Carter asked whether the South Holland area was 
getting its fair share of funding/support, particularly in relation 
to drug and alcohol prevention?

o Members were advised that the Authority was 
getting its fair share, and that an update would be 
provided to the Councillor.

 The Police were currently going into secondary schools to 
educate children about anti social behaviour – it was felt that 
this needed to be done at primary school level as problems 
often started there. 

o It was recognised that the Police needed to get into 
schools at an earlier stage, and tailor information to 
younger children.

 Councillor Taylor stated that all crime should be reported as 
this was what crime figures were based on.  If the statistics 
were not correct and reflective of actual issues, resources 
would not be adequate.

o Officers stated that some victims did not report 
crime due to fear of reprisals. Victims did not need 
to report directly, and support could be offered. 

The Portfolio Holder Strategy, Governance and Transformation 
was the Authority’s representative on the Lincolnshire Police and 
Crime Panel, and advised members of the following points:

 Scams and cyber crime – a cyber crime unit had now been set 
up for Lincolnshire;

 PCSOs had been introduced to be the eyes and ears of the 
Police – they had a number of statutory and discretionary 
powers, but no enforcement powers; 

 The funding formula for the Police was an issue, and this was 
why it was important to report all crimes to the Police;

 Priorities sometimes dictated which incidents the Police 
attended – lower level crime could not be dealt with as quickly 

EH 

DB 

Page 4



- 11 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

where more serious incidents were occurring;
 Child Sex Exploitation and Modern Slavery were now big 

issues in the area;
 The CCTV  monitoring room in Boston had around 40 

monitors with 2 operators.  It was an improvement on the 
previous arrangement as there was now more control over 
what could be done.  It would be useful for the Panel to visit 
the monitoring room.   

 The Portfolio Holder advised that a PCC meeting would be 
taking place shortly which he and Councillor Newton would 
attend.   The meeting was a strategic meeting to challenge the 
Chief Constable, through the Crime Commissioner on a 
variety of issues.  Member were asked to contact him with any 
issues which could then be raised at this meeting. 

The Panel requested that a further update report be provided to 
the Panel in six months time, taking account of the issues raised 
at the meeting.

AGREED:

a) That the update provided by officers and members be noted; 
and

b) That a further update report be provided to the Panel in six 
months time, taking account of the issues raised at the 
meeting.

(The Portfolio Holder Strategy, Governance and Transformation 
and the Community Safety and Enforcement Manager left the 
meeting following discussion of this item.) 

EH, CM 

22 MINUTES 

AGREED:

The minutes of the Performance Monitoring Panel meeting held 
on 5 September 2017 were signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record.  

23 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6. 

24 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were no responses of the Cabinet to consider. 

Page 5



- 12 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

25 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL. 

There were no items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

26 KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 24 
October 2017.

AGREED:

That the Key Decision Plan issued on 24 October 2017 be noted. 

27 SWIMMING POOL AND LEISURE FACILITIES CONTRACT 
TASK GROUP – UPDATE ON PROGRESS OF 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Communities Manager was in attendance to provide an 
update on the current situation.  The key points were that the 
leisure contract was still being monitored robustly; that further 
enforcement action had been taken at a higher level; that weekly 
inspections were being completed; that a vast improvement had 
been seen, particularly in cleanliness; and that although it was 
inevitable that there would be day to day issues, they were now 
being dealt with more quickly and effectively.

Members raised the following issues:

 The bowling green had had no heat since last winter – when 
would this be rectified?

o Work had been undertaken to improve electrical 
capacity so that heaters could be used.  A fault with 
the boiler had been identified however, this had now 
been dealt with and there was now heat.

 Why had the pool been closed due to lack of staff?
o Members were advised that a default notice had 

been issued in respect of this, and that closure of 
the pool for this reason was not acceptable.  
Sickness issues had been addressed with the 
contractor.  It was requested that where member of 
the public raised similar complaints with councillors’, 
that the Communities Manager also be advised.

 Ongoing issues with broken equipment within the facility was 
raised, and the Communities Manager agreed to ascertain the 
situation.

Page 6



- 13 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

AGREED:

a) That the information be noted and that a further update be 
provided to the Panel in six months time; and

b) That the Communities Manager provide feedback to members’ 
on outstanding issues around broken equipment.

(The Portfolio Holder Communities and Facilities, and the 
Communities Manager left the meeting following consideration of 
this item).  

EH, CM 

28 RE-LETTING OF VOID PROPERTIES TASK GROUP 

Consideration was given to the report of the Property Asset 
Manager which provided the Panel with an update on progress 
against the recommendations of the Re-letting of Void Properties 
Task Group.

 Members were advised that the recent Place review had allowed 
changes to be made to the way in which re-letting of voids was 
dealt with.  Although the Place review was complete, there were 
still some positions to be filled with staff, and consideration still 
needed to be given to better ways of undertaking processes. 

The Housing Options Manager advised that he would have overall 
responsibility for voids – he would have a new team in place and 
would be looking to make changes to existing practices.

It was requested that a further report be brought back to the Panel 
in six months time which would provide fuller information on 
improvements to the voids process, taking into account the Task 
Group’s recommendations.

a) AGREED:

That the update report be noted; and

b) That a further, fuller update on progress of the Re-Letting of 
Void Properties Task Group recommendations be presented 
to the Panel in six months time.

(The Property Asset Manager and the Housing Options Manager 
left the meeting following consideration of this item). 

GM, PS 

Page 7



- 14 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

29 QUARTER 2 2017-18 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance which provided an update on Council 
performance for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 September 2017.  
Areas where performance had improved were brought to 
members’ attention, as were areas of concern where performance 
was below the expected level or was considered to be worsening.

The Business Intelligence Officer informed members that 
performance had improved since Quarter 1, 11 indicators being 
green (55%), 3 indicators (15%) being amber, and 6 indicators 
(30%) being red.

Areas of success highlighted within the report included:

 Complaints upheld – A decrease of around 25% of stage 1 
complaints received when compared to quarter 2 last year, 
and out of 32 complaints received, only 5 were upheld.

 Calls abandoned – A reduction by half from 10.15% to 5.31% 
since the last quarter.

 Wait time in seconds – Average wait time in seconds across 
revenues, benefits and customer contact had reduced 
significantly since the last 2 quarters.

 Planning applications – The performance of the planning team 
continued to be reported above target with 95.16% of 
applications determined within time.

 Revenues and benefits – The performance improvements 
seen in 2016/17 had continued with quarter 2 following a 
similar performance trend to quarter 1, showing an error rate 
of 0.16%.  The rate remained within target and on track to 
receive 100% subsidy for 2017/18.

Areas of concern highlighted within the report included the 
following:

 Staff Turnover – Staff turnover for the quarter was 10.97%.  
Although well above the threshold, the figure was largely 
made up of leavers resulting from service reviews  

 Cases prevented from homelessness per 1,000 households  - 
Although not a targeted measure, monitoring would continue, 
as homelessness prevention was a key area for the Council 
and overall cases prevented from homelessness had seen a 
downwards trend over the last 4 quarters.

 Housing Voids – Overall, most of the housing void times had 
improved since the last quarter.  However, there were some 
performance indicators such as key to key for general needs 
and contractor times for general needs which exceeded 

Page 8



- 15 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

targets.  These areas were being addressed.
 Business Rate in Year Collection Rate -  The collection rate 

was currently 0.93% behind target.  Changes as a result of the 
recent business rates revaluation, and notification by the 
Valuation Office Agency of two large, backdated changes to 
business assessment in the rating list were largely the reason 
for this performance.  Monitoring would be undertaken and it 
was anticipated that the end of year target would be achieved.  

The Panel considered the following points:

 Commercial Property Occupancy – Although indicators 
showed occupancy at 100%, members asked for clarification 
that the properties were all being gainfully used, and not 
purely for storage.

 Could a new indicator be added to start monitoring rent 
collection for Welland Homes?  Officers advised that they 
would find out whether this could be done, and would advise 
members of the outcome.

 Planning performance and time – did the Authority monitor 
why time extensions were granted?  - Members were advised 
that extension time could be monitored, but this would be the 
exception and not the rule. 

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That responses be provided to Panel members on the issues 
raised.

(The Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager and the 
Business Intelligence Officer left the meeting following discussion 
of this item). 

CG, GP 

30 CONSTITUTION AMENDMENTS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which asked members to consider a number of 
amendments to the Constitution.  Most of the proposed changes 
were only minor and not considered urgent therefore, the 
Monitoring Officer had not made the changes under her delegated 
powers.  The report sought approval for the proposed minor, and 
other, changes.

Proposed changes detailed within the report included:

 Call-in – procedure for call-in of decisions which were not Key 

Page 9



- 16 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

Decisions and procedure for executive decisions which were 
subject to external deadlines.

 Membership of the Cabinet – clarification that the Chairman 
and Vice Chairman of the Council could not be a member of 
the Executive

 Appointments to Outside Bodies – proposal that appointments 
could be made for periods longer than one year.

 Standing Committees – Various amendments relating to 
Standing Committees proposed.

 Performance of Executive Functions – Small amendment 
proposed.

 Modern Slavery Act 2015 – amendments to the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules proposed, to take account of 
sections within the Modern Slavery Act 2015.

Members considered the information report, and agreed the 
recommendations.

AGREED:

That the amendments detailed in Appendices A to F of the report 
be approved, and the Constitution be amended accordingly. 

CM, MS 

31 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work Programme consisted 
of three separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel.

The third section contained the draft Action Plan of issues 
identified at a previous meeting for further scrutiny by the Panel.  
Officers had met with the Chairman and Vice Chairman to 
consider prioritisation of these issues, and Appendices A and C 
had been updated to reflect these discussions.  

The Panel considered the report and the following issues were 
raised:

 The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group had not 
reformed since it had produced its Final Report  - a 
recommendation from the original Task Group had been to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual, single meeting basis for 
the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remained 
compliant with Charity Commission Guidance.  It was 

Page 10



- 17 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 7 
November 2017

requested that this be arranged, and that officers be able to 
attend to provide information on issues such as costings and 
the annual event held at the playing field.

 An item identified for further scrutiny was Section 106 monies 
– how the Authority currently proactively managed these 
agreements and how it would maximise opportunities in the 
future. There was a specific question with regard to Section 
106 monies linked to a development in Pinchbeck, where 
money from it had been spent on education in Spalding.  The 
Executive Director Place advised that a response to this case 
would provided to members.

AGREED:

a) That the Work Programme report provided by the Executive 
Manager Governance be noted;

b) That the updated information provided within Appendices A 
and C of the report be noted, and that the information to be 
provided to future meetings, detailed in Appendix A, be 
agreed;

c) That a single meeting of the Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field 
Task Group be arranged as recommended by the original 
Task Group; and

d) That members be provided with information on the use of 
Section 106 monies relating to a Pinchbeck development, and 
spend in Spalding. 

CM 

EH, CM 

JB, PJ 

32 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were no urgent items. 

(The meeting ended at 8.40 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 

 

    

KEY DECISION PLAN 
 

Issued – 29 January 2018 

  

 

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to:  

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.   
 
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.” 
 
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies) 
 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 8



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
2 

 

Lincolnshire 
Homelessness 
Strategy 2017-21 
 

To consider the Lincolnshire 
Homelessness Strategy 2017-21 for 
adoption 
 

 
 
 
 

Lincolnshire 
Homelessness 
Strategy 2017-
21 
 

Cabinet 13 Feb 2018 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Finance 
 
 
Welland Homes 
Business Plan 
Update 
 

To update the Welland Homes 
Business Plan. 

 

 
 
 
 

Welland Homes 
Business Plan 
Update 

South Holland District 
Council 28 Feb 2018 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health 
 
 
Lincolnshire 
Wellbeing 
Service 
 

Delivery of the Wellbeing Service 
 

Meetings and Discussions 
 
 
 

 Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Health Before 
31 Mar 2018 
 

P
age 14



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
3 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health 
 
 
CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract 
 

To award a contract. 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing.  
 
Meetings and discussions.  
 

 Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Mar 
2018 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health 
 
 
CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021 
 

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process 
 

Meetings and discussions 
 

 Officer Decisions Before 
31 Mar 2018 
 

Portfolio Holder 
for Place 
 
 
Parking 
Enforcement 
 

To propose new working 
arrangements. 
 

 
 
 
 

Parking 
Enforcement 

Cabinet 22 May 2018 
 

P
age 15



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

 
4 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health 
 
 
New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock 
 

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock. 
 

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager. 
 
Informal meetings and 
discussions. 
 

 Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Jun 
2018 
 

 
 
 

*Cabinet Membership 

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader) 
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader) 
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor C Johnson (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder) 
 
 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

P
age 16



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director – Strategy and Governance

To: Performance Monitoring Panel, 6th February 2018 and Cabinet, 13th 
February 2018

Author: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager

Subject: Performance Overview Report – Quarter 3 2017/18

Purpose: To provide an update on Council performance for the period 1 October 2017 
to 31 December 2017

Recommendation(s): 

1)  To note the content of the report

1.0 BACKGROUND

The Quarter 3 2017/18 Performance Report (Appendix A) aims to provide Members and 
residents with information about how the Council is delivering its services and how it is 
progressing against its Corporate Priorities.  The covering report highlights in further detail 
some of the indicators within the performance report.

Areas where performance has improved are brought to Members’ attention, as are areas of 
concern where performance is below expected levels or is considered to be worsening.

1.1 Key Performance Indicators

Quarter 3 saw performance remain steady in comparison to quarter 2. Performance is rated 
as ‘moderate’ with 11 indicators being green (58%) which indicates good performance. 
There are 3 (16%) amber indicators and 6 red indicators (26%); highlighting lower than 
expected performance. There are 6 indicators which are classified as data only; this means 
that they are monitored without requiring a target and 1 in which the data is currently 
unavailable.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



The attached report notes any indicators which were unable to report their full quarter 
turnout, this is due to the short turnaround time required for this reporting period. In the 
case of the unavailable data for the waste PI, this is because the information is provided by 
County who have a much longer processing time for their data and therefore we are unable 
to report it in time for the agenda dispatch. Where information is available for the meeting of 
PMP this can be provided and will be reported to the next PMP where there are indicators 
which raise any cause for concern.

1.2 Areas of Success

Complaints Upheld
There has been a reduction in the number of complaints that have been upheld in the 
quarter when compared to the same period last year. There has been an increase in the 
number of complaints recorded in the period, this is likely due to the improvements that 
have been made in the reporting system for complaints, ensuring that all complaints are 
correctly reported into the Covalent/Pentana computer system. We have also introduced 
online web forms to allow users to log complaints directly into the website and look to 
improve resolution times for complaints. Any further increase in complaints will be 
monitored, however the reduction in upheld numbers evidences that the errors made, in 
regards to the complaints raised, is reducing. The complaints received are utilised when 
analysing areas in which services can improve and therefore an increase in complaints 
received can be used to successfully improve our offer to residents.

Calls abandoned and wait time in seconds
The average wait time in seconds continues to remain low at under 90 seconds and the 
volume of calls abandoned has reduced from both the previous year and Q2. Despite an 
increase in the number of calls, the number abandoned has also reduced showing that 
performance has improved. 

Planning Applications
The performance of the planning team continues to be reported above target with 88.59% 
of applications determined within time, this refers to 163 applications, and of this there were 
38 that had agreed extensions of time. Performance remains strong and in line with the 
national average.

Revenues and Benefits
Performance continues to be strong and the LA error rate is reported as 0.17%, this 
remains well below the threshold for possible financial penalty and the Council remains on 
target and on track to receive 100% subsidy for 2017/18.

1.3 Areas for Improvement

The following areas are either not achieving their target or are experiencing a significant 
decline in performance:

Staff Turnover

Staff turnover for quarter 3 is significantly reduced compared to the previous quarter. Whilst 
higher than the same period in the previous year, this was expected due to the ongoing 
moving forward programme, which includes a number of service reviews looking for 
efficiencies across the Council. 40% of the staff turnover in the quarter was due to 
redundancy because of service review. 
Many of the posts that were resigned from have now been recruited to and therefore 
service delivery should not be impacted. This also confirms that the Council is still seen as 
a desirable place to work and staff turnover is not currently of concern because of these 

Page 18



points. The reasons for staff turnover will continue to be monitored to ensure that any areas 
for concern are addressed and shall be raised to PMP where required.

In Year Collection Rate for Council Tax and Business Rates

The in year rate for business rate collection is slightly behind target with £143,161.34 short 
of the collection amount target. Analysis has shown that changes in the Local Rating List 
between November and December has led to an increase of £155k (0.59%) in annual 
collectable debit, which is due to be paid by ratepayers between December and the end of 
the financial year. 
Therefore it is anticipated that we will achieve the end of year target and performance will 
be in line with previous year's performance.

Similarly Council tax is 0.42% behind target with work being done to bring new properties 
into valuation which will result in an increase in the collectable debit that becomes payable 
over future instalments.  Analysis showed that there is an additional 0.47% of the annual 
collectable debit due from taxpayers between December and the end of the financial year, 
compared to the same period last year.
Therefore, plans to take prompt action in line with the Debt Recovery timetable for accounts 
that fall in to arrears, and appropriate proactive exercises undertaken during the final 
quarter of the year will ensure we maximise in year collection.

Housing Voids

Following the service review and new structure in the housing team, there have been a 
number of proposed changes considered to improve the service delivery, including how 
voids are dealt with. This has highlighted key areas which need to be further investigated 
and scoped for improvement. The housing service have advised that during this period it is 
likely that the reported figures will continue to be below target whilst they analyse the data 
and working procedures to consider improvement opportunities. The housing service have 
confirmed that they would like to attend the next Performance Monitoring Panel in order to 
discuss this with members and give assurances of the work under way which is producing 
an action plan detailing how the service is looking to improve.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Members are asked to consider the information contained within the report.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Report for consideration, in order to fulfil the Performance Monitoring Panel’s remit.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Council’s performance is properly scrutinised.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

 The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring Panel.

5.2 Corporate Priorities

The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

Page 19



5.3 Financial

The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 
information relating to financial matters.

5.4 Reputation

Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence.  It is the purpose of this 
report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

5.5 Risk Management

Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect Council 
interests.

5.6 Staffing

The report contains information relating to staffing issues.

6.0     WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1     No Wards or Communities are affected 

7.0     ACRONYMS 

PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel
PI – Performance Indicator
LA – Local Authority

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager
Telephone Number: 01362 656866
Email: greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Quarter 3 Performance Report

Page 20

file:///C:/Users/CharlottePaine/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


1

APPENDIX A

2017/18 Q3 SHDC PMP Report

Generated on: 11 January 2018

         

         

Indicator % of Customer Complaints Upheld - Stage 1 Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

# of complaints upheld Total # of complaints Value

Q3 2016/17 6 27 22.22%

Current Performance

# of complaints upheld Total # of complaints Value

Q3 2017/18 4 56 7.14%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Complaints upheld as a % 
of all stage 1 complaints 
closed in period 
This is calculated using the 
number of complaints 
upheld divided by the total 
number of complaints 
closed in the period 

 

25%

 

A lower % is better as we look to reduce the 
number of complaints upheld for an SHDC 
error 

In the quarter there were 4 complaints upheld which is a reduction 
on the number upheld in the same period in the previous year. The 
increase in the number of complaints rerecorded is likely due to the 
improvements in the reporting system for complaints including new 
web forms on the SHDC website.

         

         

P
age 21



2

Indicator % of Customer Complaints Upheld - Stage 2 Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

# complaints upheld # complaints received 
in previous period

Value

Q3 2016/17 0 4 0%

Current Performance

# complaints upheld # complaints received 
in previous period

Value

Q3 2017/18 0 5 0%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Complaints upheld as a % 
of all stage 2 complaints 
closed in period 
This is calculated using the 
number of complaints 
upheld divided by the total 
number of complaints 
closed in the period 

 

25%
 

A lower % is better as we look to reduce the 
number of complaints upheld for an SHDC 
error 

There were no complaints upheld at stage 2 in the quarter

Indicator % of Calls Abandoned Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value

Q3 2016/17 1,233 25,562 4.82%

Current Performance

Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value

Q3 2017/18 1,186 26,634 4.45%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of calls that are 
abandoned (call 
terminated prior to 
answering), excluding 
those abandoned within 5 
seconds. 
 
This is a combined 
measure across Customer 
Contact, Revenues and 
Benefits calls 

 

 Data Only
 

A lower % is better as we look to answer
 more calls

There has been a slight reduction in the percentage of calls that were 
abandoned in the quarter. This follows a reduction in the total number 
of calls abandoned and an increase in the overall calls received.

P
age 22



3

Indicator Average Wait Time in Seconds Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total time waiting Total number calls 
received

Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A 83.78

Current Performance

Total time waiting Total number calls 
received

Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 87.67

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Average time to answer 
phone calls in seconds 
This is measured across 
customer services, 
revenues and benefits 
calls. 

 
 Data Only

 
A lower number is better as it indicates less 
time waiting for a call to be answered

There has been a slight increase in the average wait time for those 
contacting the council, though this is still below 90 seconds

Indicator % of household waste recycled or composted Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Recycled and 
Composted Tonnes

Total Waste Tonnes Value

Q3 2016/17 2383.84 7483.48 31.89%

Current Performance

Recycled and 
Composted Tonnes

Total Waste Tonnes Value

Q3 2017/18 2402.24 7440.11 32.29%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of household waste 
which has been recycled 
and composted (includes 
garden waste) against all 
the household waste 
collected

 
32% 

 
A higher % is better as we look to 
recycle or compost more waste

There has been a reduction in the total waste collected whilst there has 
been an increase in amount composted meaning an improved 

P
age 23



4

percentage of waste recycled and composted.

         

         

Indicator Missed Waste Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of missed 
collections

Per 100,000 collection 
figure

Value

Q3 2016/17 296 10.185 29.1

Current Performance

Number of missed 
collections

Per 100,000 collection 
figure

Value

Q3 2017/18 397 10.185 39.0

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of missed 
collections per 100,000 
people 

 

33.0

 

A lower number is better as we look to ensure 
fewer waste collections are missed

The number of collections reported missed has increased in the 
quarter, however this is likely due to the Christmas period and we 
will monitor closely the next quarter’s performance. It is also worth 
noting that 397 collections were missed from over 1 million in the 
quarter and therefore 99.99% were collected

       

 

 

         

P
age 24



5

Indicator Waste sent to 'Energy from Waste' per Household (kg) Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A 45.4

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of Kg’s of residual 
waste collected per 
household sent to Energy 
from Waste 
Calculated by 'residual 
waste collected' x 1000 
then divided by number of 
households waste has 
been collected from 

 

45.0

 

A lower number is better as we look to reduce 
the amount of waste sent for incineration 

Due to the reporting cycle for the committee meeting and the time 
required for the information to be received from the County, there is 
not data currently available for this performance indicator.

Indicator Commercial Property Occupancy Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of units let Total number of units Value

Q3 2016/17 50 50 100%

Current Performance

Number of units let Total number of units Value

Q3 2017/18 49.667 50 99.33%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Occupancy levels of the 
council's industrial units 

 

90%
 

A higher number is better as we look to rent 
out as many council owned industrial units as 
possible

This indicator continues to perform well, with 49 of the 50 units 
occupied.

P
age 25



6

Indicator Staff turnover % Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of leavers in 
period

Total number of staff 
in period

Value

Q3 2016/17 3 255 1.18%

Current Performance

Number of leavers in 
period

Total number of staff 
in period

Value

Q3 2017/18 10 221 4.52%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of total leavers against 
total number of staff 
employed in period 
(includes involuntary 
leavers) 
 
Target is 10% which has 
been benchmarked 

 

2.5%

 

Lower is better as we look to retain staff During the quarter there has been staff turnover due to resignations, 
redundancies; both compulsory and voluntary and staff passing 
away. The redundancies have been part of the place service review 
which is part of the moving forward programme and therefore we 
have expected the rise in staff turnover.
 

       

 

 

         

P
age 26



7

Indicator Working Days Lost to Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days lost Number of FTE Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A 2.66

Current Performance

Number of days lost Number of FTE Value

Q3 2017/18 519.41 201.08 2.5

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total number of working 
days lost per Full Time 
Equivalent. 
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
sickness and dividing it by 
the number of full time 
equivalent staff in the 
period 

 
2.5

 
Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness 

The number of days lost to sickness has reduced slightly from the 
same period last year and is now within target. 

Indicator Working Days Lost to Long Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days lost - 
long term

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Number of days lost - 
long term

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2017/18 410.87 201.8 2.04

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of working days 
lost per Full Time 
Equivalent for long term 
sickness. 
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
long term sickness and 
dividing it by the number 
of full time equivalent staff 
in the period 

 
Data Only 

 
Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness 

There were 8, 10, 9 members of staff on long term sickness in the 
respective months of the quarter.

         

P
age 27



8

         

Indicator Working Days Lost to Short Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days lost - 
short term

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Number of days lost - 
short term

Number of FTE Value

Q3 2017/18 108.55 201.8 0.54

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of working days 
lost per Full Time 
Equivalent for short term 
sickness. 
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
long term sickness and 
dividing it by the number 
of full time equivalent staff 
in the period 

 
Data Only 

 
Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness 

There were 45 days lost to sickness in December with 18 members of 
staff off in the period, an average of 2.5 days.

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (total ave. key to key) All Tenures Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void Total # properties void Value

Q3 2016/17 435.667 19.667 22 days

Current Performance

Total # days void Total # properties void Value

Q3 2017/18 2,066 63 33 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in to keys out - 
including major works for 
all tenures (General Needs 
and Sheltered Housing) 
This is calculated by total 
number of days properties 
remain vacant divided by 
the number or properties 
vacant in the period 

 

28 days
 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 
receiving rent payments 

Please see covering report for detail

P
age 28



9

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Keys In to Keys Back from Contractor) - All Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2016/17 1,258 59 21 days

Current Performance

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2017/18 1,996 63 32 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to 
works completed by the 
contractor and the 
property is ready to be let 
This is calculated by total 
number of days all 
properties remained 
vacant whilst the keys are 
with the contractors to 
complete works divided by 
the total number of 
properties vacant in the 
period  

25 days
 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant whilst 
works are completed 

Please see covering report for detail

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Contractor) - General Needs Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2016/17 893 36 25 days

Current Performance

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2017/18 1,622 41 40 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to 
works completed by the 
contractor and the 
property is ready to be let. 
This is only for 'general 
needs' properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant whilst the keys are 
with the contractors to 
complete works divided by  25 days  Lower is better as we look to reduce the Please see covering report for detail

P
age 29



10

the total number of 
general needs properties 
vacant in the period 

amount of time a property is vacant whilst 
works are completed 

         

         

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Contractor) - Sheltered Housing Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2016/17 121.667 7.667 16 days

Current Performance

Total # days void 
(contract)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2017/18 374 22 17 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to 
works completed by the 
contractor and the 
property is ready to be let. 
This is only for 'sheltered' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days sheltered 
properties remained 
vacant whilst the keys are 
with the contractors to 
complete works divided by 
the total number of 
sheltered properties vacant 
in the period 

 

25 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant whilst 
works are completed 

Please see covering report for detail

     

 

   

         

P
age 30



11

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Letting) - General Needs Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void 
(letting)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2016/17 82 36 2 days

Current Performance

Total # days void 
(letting)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2017/18 44 41 1 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days for 
properties to be let after 
the works were completed 
by the contractor. This is 
only for 'general needs' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant whilst the property 
is waiting to be let after 
the contractors completed 
works divided by the total 
number of general needs 
properties vacant in the 
period 

 

3 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant for letting 
post works completion 

Please see covering report for detail

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Letting) - Sheltered Housing Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void 
(letting)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2016/17 145 23 6 days

Current Performance

Total # days void 
(letting)

Total # properties void Value

Q3 2017/18 55 22 3 days

Total time in days for 
properties to be let after 
the works were completed 
by the contractor. This is 
only for 'sheltered' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days sheltered 
properties remained 
vacant whilst the property 
is waiting to be let after 

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

P
age 31



12

the contractors completed 
works divided by the total 
number of sheltered 
properties vacant in the 
period 

 

3 days

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant for letting 
post works completion 

Please see covering report for detail

         

         

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Key to Key) - General Needs Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void (ktok) Total # properties void Value

Q3 2016/17 879 36 24 days

Current Performance

Total # days void (ktok) Total # properties void Value

Q3 2017/18 1,672 41 41 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to keys 
out to the new tenant. This 
is only for 'general needs' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant divided by the total 
number of general needs 
properties vacant in the 
period  

28 days
 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 
receiving rent payments 

Please see covering report for detail

     

 

   

         

P
age 32



13

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Key to Key) - Sheltered Housing Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void (ktok) Total # of properties 
void

Value

Q3 2016/17 142.667 7.667 19 days

Current Performance

Total # days void (ktok) Total # of properties 
void

Value

Q3 2017/18 131.333 7.333 18 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to keys 
out to the new tenant. This 
is only for 'general needs' 
properties 
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant divided by the total 
number of general needs 
properties vacant in the 
period 

 

28 days
 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 
receiving rent payments 

Please see covering report for detail

Indicator Cases Prevented from Homelessness per 1,000 households Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A 3.7

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

P1E Return - Prevention 
and Relieving of 
Homelessness 
Number of potentially 
homeless cases diverted 
from homelessness per 
1,000 households 

 

 Data Only
 

This is not a targeted measure. The number 
does not reflect % of cases prevented from 
homelessness and therefore will fluctuate 

Due to the reporting cycle for this meeting, the data is not currently 
available for this performance indicator but shall be for the next 
report

P
age 33



14

dependent upon demand to the service. 

         

         

Indicator % of all planning applications determined within time Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

# plan apps determined 
in time

# planning applications 
received

Value

Q3 2016/17 247 266 92.86%

Current Performance

# plan apps determined 
in time

# planning applications 
received

Value

Q3 2017/18 163 184 88.59%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of planning 
applications determined 
within their statutory times 
divided by total number of 
applications received. 
Includes all application 
types (majors, minors, 
others) 

 
70%

 
Higher is better as we look to determine as 
many as possible within their timescales 

Significantly above the national target, 12 extensions of time in this 
figure.

     

 

   

         

P
age 34



15

Indicator Housing Benefit LA Error Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend

Value

Q3 2016/17 61,521.22 13,692,629.3 0.45%

Current Performance

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend

Value

Q3 2017/18 21,531.5 12,743,846.27 0.17%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Local Authority error in 
Housing Benefit 
overpayment 
Amount of benefits 
overpaid divided by 
benefits paid (% of overall 
expenditure) 

 

0.42%

 

Lower is better as we look to minimise the 
amount of money paid in error and reduce the 
risk of financial penalty (which occurs above 
0.48%) 

LA error rate remains below target and on track to receive full 
subsidy for this financial year.

P
age 35



16

Indicator Business Rate In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2016/17 84.39%

Current Performance

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2017/18 22,201,381.92 26,505,982.58 83.76%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Amount of Business Rates 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit 

 

84.3%

 

Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the business rates debit as possible 

We are currently 0.54% behind target (0.19 ahead last month).  This 
is the first year of a new rating list following the 2017 national 
revaluation.  We anticipated a reduction in collection rates (compared 
to previous years) for several months as we continue to rebill those 
businesses that qualify for new reliefs (announced by the 
Government in the spring budget) which are specifically designed to 
assist those ratepayers most adversely affected by the revaluation.
We anticipate we will achieve the end of year target and performance 
will be in line with previous year's performance. 

P
age 36



17

Indicator Council Tax In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2016/17 35,391,126.76 41,119,310.89 86.07%

Current Performance

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2017/18 37,032,507.62 43,307,692.28 85.51%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Amount of Council Tax 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit 

 

86.05%

 

Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the Council Tax debit as possible 

We are currently 0.54% behind target. We anticipated that changes to 
local Council Tax Support scheme that took effect this year would 
impact on in year collection. We continue to take prompt action in 
line with the Debt Recovery timetable for those account that fall in to 
arrears. Appropriate proactive exercises will also be undertaken 
during the final quarter of the year to ensure we maximise in year 
collection.

P
age 37



18

Indicator New Homes - Affordable Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A 5

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 1

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of affordable 
homes completed in the 
District the period 

 

 Data Only

 

Higher is better as we look to increase the 
number of affordable properties in the District 

There was 1 affordable home completed in November. This was a 
Shared Equity property in Cowbit.
Please note that due to the reporting timescale for this meeting, 
December values were not available at the writing of this report

 

P
age 38



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of:  Executive Director - Place – Rob Walker

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Tuesday, 6 February 2018

(Author: Housing Landlord Manager – Martin Cregg / Property Asset Manager - Gerry 
McKevitt

Subject Catering Lease South Holland Centre

Purpose: To provide background on why the decision to renew the catering lease had 
to follow the urgent procedure.

Recommendation(s):

1) That members note the content of this report.

2) That officers will report back to PMP in 6 months time to outline future catering contract 
options.

1.0 Background

1.1 The current operator Caterwell East Anglia (John Norman) has provided all the catering 
services and supported the events held at the South Holland Centre since 2013.  The lease 
expires on 31st January 2018 but discussions started in September with a view to extend 
the contract.  In December Caterwell East Anglia informed the council they did not wish to 
extend their term.  Discussions immediately commenced with an alternative prospective 
tenant in order to facilitate the continuity of services at the site.

1.2 Officers will attend the PMP meeting to give a fuller explanation of events and address the 
members wider concerns.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the report be noted.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 The reasons for the requirement that the Portfolio Holders report be approved as an urgent 
decision is based around a number of factors.  The overriding consideration was to ensure 
the continuity of services at the South Holland Centre, in addition the recent Place Review 
resulted in the complete reorganisation and re-staffing of a new Assets team.  A significant 
number of outstanding issues and contracts transitioned over to this new team.  The 
prioritisation of the Department for Work and Pensions project resulted in the usual 
preliminary work for this contract being delayed.  

Page 39

Agenda Item 10



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 In future there will be fewer reports requiring urgent decisions.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

In order to address this situation staff are embarking on training and in the future will work 
more closely alongside Democratic Services to mitigate a reoccurrence of this problem.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No one Ward or specific community is affected.

7.0 ACRONYMS

7.1 None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Gerry McKevitt Property Asset Manager
Telephone Number
Email: gerrymckevitt@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: N

Exempt Decision: N

This report refers to a Discretionary Service

Appendices attached to this report: None

Page 40



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of:      Executive Director - Place

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Tuesday, 6 February 2018 

(Author: Emily Spicer Environmental Services Manager)

Subject:         Street Scene 

Purpose: To respond to a question raised at the Performance Monitoring Panel on 4 
July 2017 in respect to how ‘Street Scene’ is undertaken and managed in 
South Holland. 

Recommendation:

1) That the Panel gives consideration to the report. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 At a meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel held on 4 July 2017 a question was 
raised in respect to how the Street Scene (public streets and open spaces) of South 
Holland is managed and undertaken. 

1.2 Public streets and open spaces are a vital part of the South Holland district. They are used 
by many thousands of people, including local residents and visitors to South Holland. It is 
recognised that the quality of the Street Scene affects people’s decisions about visiting the 
district and whether to invest in the local economy. 

1.3 Within South Holland District Council’s Corporate Plan 2015-2019 four key priorities are 
clearly set out. In the context of the Street Scene question raised, two of the four key 
priorities are extremely pertinent. These are;

To have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents to develop 
and thrive; and

To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way.

1.4      These priorities assist in shaping and focusing the operational delivery of the Street Scene 
function based in the Environmental Services department. 

1.5      Street Scene Operational Delivery

The operational management of the Street Scene is a critical frontline delivery function. The 
function includes a Street Cleansing Supervisor, 9 Cleansing Operatives, 1 Public 
Convenience Attendant, 1 Parks, Grounds and Open Spaces Officer and 12 Grounds 
Operatives. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 11



         
a) Day to day cleansing routine 

 Mechanical sweeping: 
- 1 x 650 sweeper – travels everywhere except Spalding town centre,  goes to a 

specific area each day to collect large debris/litter e.g. every Monday = Sutton 
bridge

- 1 x 400 sweeper  – towns based, collects small scale debris (cigarette butts, dust, 
detritus)

- 1 x 200 sweeper – Spalding town centre based

 Routine Litter/dog bin emptying and missed refuse/recycling collections
 Routine litter picks inclusive of lay-bys and A16 bypass where safely able to do so
 Public conveniences – Spalding, Donington, Holbeach, Long Sutton, Sutton Bridge
 Weed spraying (Spalding town centre).
 Leaf sweeping and suction. 
 Monitoring to ensure work is completed to a good standard

b) Reactive cleansing work 

South Holland is divided into Zones by the department and allocated certain time periods 
(appendix A) to action remedial work over and above the day-to-day cleansing routine. 

 Remedial works (service requests) e.g. missed sacks, litter pick, street sweeping, flytips, 
sack delivery

 Graffiti removal and graffiti removal pricing (for privately owned property)
 Sharps collections
 Flytips removal (however most are undertaken by North Sea Camp partnership). 
 Clearance of dead animals

c) Additional Miscellaneous works

 Additional cleansing for special events e.g. In Bloom, Pumpkin Parade
 Covering refuse/recycling collections due to sickness
 Assistance in times of emergency e.g. wind damage
 Bin erection
 Bringing out refuse/recycling sacks where large vehicle cannot access. 

d) Grass Cutting (during the growing season)

 Grass cutting, mowing and strimming 600,000 squared metre (every 3 weeks, 
approximately 10 times a year dependent on weather) inclusive of SHDC owned areas, 
Spalding river bank, Lincolnshire County Council verges in commissioned Parish’s’ and 
Spalding. 

 Weed spraying – curb lines and obstacles 
 Litter picks on grassed areas. 
 Blowing grass off footpaths/road

        e) Football Pitch Maintenance (during the football season, including weekends)

 White lines

Page 42



 Erect posts and nets where required
 Repairs to equipment
 Changing room cleaning
 Litter pick/ dog fouling removal prior to matches
 Locking up
 Selective weed spraying and drainage
 Reseeding (once season has finished)

      f) Play Area Maintenance (37 across the district)

 Play area inspections 
 Minor repairs to safety surface and all repairs to play equipment
 Litter bin emptying and litter picks

     g) Planting and weeding

 Planning and planting of bedding areas (total of 23,000 plants)
 Hanging baskets
 Winter planting 
 Weeding 

     h) Tree and Shrub Maintenance (winter season plus ‘as and when’)

 Overhanging branch cutting and raised canopy (major works are externally commissioned)
 Hedge and shrub trimming/ wood chipping (hedges left to a maximum of 6ft)

     i) Miscellaneous 

 Litter picks / rubbish removal of Council owned ponds
 Inspection of life buoys on Spalding river bank
 Maintenance of SHDC owned Bowling Greens.
 Supervision of grounds maintenance contract work
 

1.6       Pride in South Holland programme

1.6.1    In September 2017 South Holland District Council approved the continuation of the Pride in 
South Holland programme until March 2019. This programme comprises of work over and 
above the day-to-day street cleansing and is co-ordinated, actioned and monitored by the 
Street Cleansing Supervisor assisted by 2 operatives.  A third operative works principally in 
Spalding town centre and its surrounds.

1.6.2 From inception in 2014, the programme of works established a series of ‘priority areas’ 
requiring attention, such as grot spots and untidy sites.  The ‘priority areas’ were, 
themselves identified by Members in conjunction with officers.  Focussed clean-ups were 
made in the areas of Sutton Bridge and Holbeach in tandem with ensuring there was an 
increased presence in Spalding town centre on the Tuesday market day. An additional road 
sweeper was also hired in for the duration to target areas and ensure the consistent 
delivery of six monthly and annual cleansing cycles.  Works continued in Sutton Bridge, 
Sutton St James, Long Sutton, Gedney, Fleet Hargate, Holbeach, Holbeach St Johns, 
Holbeach Drove, Moulton, Weston, Weston Hills, Spalding, Pinchbeck, West Pinchbeck, 
Crowland, Surfleet, Gosberton, Quadring, Donington and Deeping St Nicholas.  Works had 
also been undertaken to the lay-bys on those parts of the A16 and A17 that fall within South 

Page 43



Holland.  In addition, works were also undertaken within public open spaces and play areas 
District-wide.

1.6.3   Additionally the programme has expanded to include a series of works on high profile sites. 
By way of example, the removal of graffiti and overgrown weeds from the former ‘Bull and 
Monkie’ public house site was actioned.  Dangerous play equipment was also removed 
from an abandoned (privately owned) play area in Crocus Walk, Spalding.

 

1.6.4  In addition to the above, the team has widened its work to include liaison with local 
businesses in order to encourage a sense of pride in their surroundings.  Regular sweeping 
and the provision of litter-bins has been actively promoted.

1.6.5  The range of works undertaken by the team has been well received by residents and 
businesses and has received positive coverage in the Press.  

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the Performance Monitoring Panel notes the contents of the report. 

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 This is a factual update report that does not require Members to make a formal decision. 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 To provide Members with up to date and relevant information. 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

Due to the factual nature of this report, it is in the Report Authors opinion that there are no 
implications. 

5.1 Stakeholders / Constitution / Timescales

5.1.1 It is in the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.  

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All wards and communities are affected. 

7.0 ACRONYMS

7.1 None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emily Spicer Environmental Services Manager
Telephone Number 01775 764884
Email: emily.spicer@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Page 44



Appendix A: CLEANSING STANDARDS AND RESPONSE TIMES

All times shown are the maximum time allowable to restore to Grade A

Grade:

Category: A B C D E
(Fly tipping)

Category 1 Zone

Town Centres, major 
transport centres, public 
conveniences, etc.

6 hrs 3 hrs 1 hr 1 hr

Category 3 Zone

Low density shopping 
and residential areas 
etc.

24 hrs 12 hrs 6 hrs 24 hrs

3 hrs when 
dangerous

Category 7 Zone

District/local roads, 
paths, verges, etc.

4 weeks 2 weeks 5 days 24 hrs

3 hrs when 
dangerous

DEFINITION OF GRADES

GRADE A:  Virtually no litter or refuse within area – litter bins empty/clean and
ready for use

GRADE B:  Low Coverage but visible

GRADE C:  Clusters of old and new litter

GRADE D:  Areas heavily littered with small and large items of litter, with heavy
accumulation along boundaries (our responsibility not private property)
Litter bins 80% to 90% full of litter and exterior of litter bins not clean

Period from 
20.00 hrs to 
06.00 hrs is 
discounted for 
the purpose of 
assessing 
compliance 
with standards 
apart from 
Grade E

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Rob Walker, Executive Director Place

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 6 February 2018

(Author: Emily Holmes Communities Manager)

Subject: Enforcement Update

Purpose: To provide Members with an update on Enforcement activity following the 
Place Review

Recommendation(s): 
 
1) That the content of the report be noted

2) That a further update is provided to the Performance Monitoring Panel in six months’ time

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 In 2017 there was a significant review of Communities, Environmental Services, Housing 
and Operational Assets services.  The process involved a diagnostic and functional review 
of how the services are currently operating to identify improved ways of working.

A key change to operational model was to strengthen the integration of enforcement 
activity across these three services.  In essence, all environmental enforcement activity 
moved to the Communities Team to enable a more consistent and effective approach.  
Stronger links have been established across teams for case work and interventions to 
support joined up and cohesive enforcement action.

The Community Safety and Enforcement team will additionally continue to work in direct 
partnership with local stakeholders including parish councils, fire and rescue and 
Lincolnshire Police, to address resident and community concerns, maintaining a victim led 
service, and provide support and protection for the most vulnerable. The working ethos of 
this conjoined approach will be for the team to use the most appropriate tool, power or 
legislation.  This should not only enable the team to take swift and robust action when 
necessary but should also facilitate the implementation of  intervention at an early stage; 
as well as ensuring preventative action is taken to resolve issues as quickly as possible. 
This approach is underpinned through robust case management to ensure the best 
outcomes and support for victims and our communities.

The functional service review in 2017 did not include the Planning Service and as such, 
the function for planning enforcement remains, for the present, within the planning service 
given its legislative complexity and the need for it to work in tandem with the broader 
planning function.  However, closer links with planning, including direct liaison with the 
Senior Compliance Officer have been established.  This has resulted in a more integrated 
approach which not only provides clarity for our residents and also lessens the prospect of 
a disjointed or dislocated approach across the wider Council.

1.2     Enforcement activity within the Place Directorate includes planning enforcement, 
contraventions of building regulations, littering, fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour, 

Page 47

Agenda Item 12



abandoned vehicles, evictions, possessions and prohibition orders.  The activity covers 
public areas, homes, environment and individual behaviours.  

Enforcement in 18/19
 

1.3    The new approach focuses on problem solving, sharing information across teams and 
maximising contact with residents and local stakeholders.  There continues to be a strong 
focus on supporting victims and risk assessment.  As well as information received directly 
from victims, there will be a focus on using intelligence from local stakeholders and 
knowledge from officers and partners working across patches and neighbourhoods to 
build a fuller picture and take action sooner where appropriate. 

1.4    A staged process to enforcement takes places across all the areas of activity.  Early 
intervention is undertaken across all areas, this ranging from initial warning letters in 
neighbour disputes to identified contraventions of building regulations.  The aim of 
enforcement action can be to stop or change a behaviour, to ensure compliance or to put 
something right.  If this can be achieved through an initial warning or early intervention 
then that is a successful outcome. In some cases, individuals can be required to make 
changes under a variety of tools and powers.  The action taken needs to be appropriate 
and proportionate.   As an example, since 1st April 2017, 68 level one warnings have 
been issued for anti-social behaviour.  Only 14 individuals were then identified as being 
involved in further incidents and received a level two warning, around 20%.  Of those 14 
individuals only 4 of them continued to be involved in anti-social behaviour and 
subsequently signed up to an Acceptable Behaviour Contract. The team also dealt with 
one individual who refused to sign up to an ABC and continued to be involved in 
behaviour that caused harassment, alarm and distress in their community.  For this case, 
the council was successful in obtaining an interim Injunction through the court.  There will 
be situations were enforcement action with immediate penalties will be pursued including 
fly tipping offences and littering.

1.5    In order to enable the authority to take action, officers need different information and 
evidence depending on the type of case.  In some instances, a warning letter may only 
need a report.  However, in most cases more detail is needed, ranging from reports 
through to extensive investigations.  Since the new structure came in to force there has 
been a focus on the quality of evidence received from communities and partner agencies.  
Effective and increased partnership working with Lincolnshire Police operationally has 
enabled new quality control procedures to be established.  Hot desking within the new 
team has given a greater working knowledge of how each authority works and what is 
needed to take enforcement action at different thresholds and under different powers.

The other area of focus is the quality and type of information available when complaints 
come in to the team.  The reporting channels and importance of reporting has been a 
constant message to communities and stakeholders over the last year and will continued 
to be reinforced.   The quality of case notes has also been improved through additional 
training and promoting the importance of diary sheets and other records.  It is essential 
that the evidence used by officers for any enforcement action can stand up to challenge in 
court.  

1.6 To shape the service and the offer, local concerns highlighted by members and residents           
are being addressed.  Broadly, the feedback received covered the time taken to take 
action; quality and timeliness of feedback to those raising concerns; local awareness; and 
the promotion of enforcement activity and its wider visibility.  

1.7 To address these, a number of key pieces of work are underway.  These include;

Page 48



 Revised literature and online material explaining processes and service standards
 Online reporting mechanism
 A briefing session for members and parish councils on reporting and supporting 

residents with their concerns 
 Multi-agency case management procurement – which will identify hot spots, 

neighbourhood information via data and customer feedback
 Streamlined contact for customers rather than multiple partners or departments
 Developing customer satisfaction surveys
 Spot checks and case supervision
 Revised reporting suite of PIs, team actions and case studies for 18/19
 Increased communication and social media for informing and updating
 Key campaigns for 18/19 to support prevention
 Increased visibility and on the ground presence through the introduction of the 

community wardens.

The Council secured £127,000 external funding from the Controlling Migration Fund for the 
introduction of Community Wardens for a two year project.  These roles will help to create 
safer and stronger communities by taking action, changing perceptions about anti-social 
behaviour (ASB) and community safety and reassuring residents with factual information.  
The wardens will inform residents about expected behaviours and give public reassurance 
that concerns have been listened to and actions taken.  Taking a holistic approach in 
addressing these issues the Council can continue to identify and address the wider social 
issues and multiple complex needs individuals involved may have.

Some of the key functions of the Wardens are;

   provide a visible uniformed presence, carrying out regular patrols of hot spot areas 
as identified by partners and case records

   take enforcement action to ensure compliance with the Spalding town centre 
Public Space Protection Order

 issue Fixed Penalty Notices providing a reassuring presence in areas where 
neighbourhoods feel  vulnerable

   work with street drinkers and groups of teenagers through education
 act as a visual presence and deterrent for future and more serious incidences of 

community safety and ASB
   be responsible for recording, reporting and investigating activities and allegations 

of behaviours causing a nuisance reporting back to residents with progress and 
outcome of investigations

1.8    Fly-tipping remains a key concern for local residents.  In 2016/17 some 671 fly tips were 
cleared in South Holland.  Successful prosecution resulted in over £7,000 of fines.  In 
2017/18 so far there have been 469 reports of fly tipping.  These reports included single 
black bags, tyres, white goods through to van loads.   Fly-tips that have been traced back 
to residents and duty of care so far in 17/18 have resulted in £3,526 worth of fines from 4 
fly tips.

The process itself it time consuming and warrants explanation.  Briefly, when a report of 
fly-tipping is received, an officer will visit the site to check for evidence and that the items 
are safe (non-hazardous) to remove. The aim is to clear the site within 3 working days of a 
report. The ASB and Enforcement Officer will attend the site and go through any bags to 
look for ways in which the perpetrator can be identified. They will also investigate locally 
for additional information. In areas where there are repeats of fly-tipping, the officer will 
look to spend additional time investigating the fly-tip to prevent further incidents. The 

Page 49



amount of time investigating a fly-tip will be proportionate to the incident and the impact on 
the local community.  The officer will follow up any evidence that is found and carry out 
interviews with suspected offenders.  Where there is sufficient evidence and it is in the 
public interest prosecution the council will prosecute via court or issue fixed penalty 
notices.

A campaign was run to raise awareness about the duty of care that applies to residents 
when disposing of waste.  It highlights the risks of choosing someone other than a 
licensed waste carrier or local council to dispose of unwanted items.  Residents are 
responsible by law if a third party they have asked or paid to dispose of their waste 
subsequently fly-tips it.  
 

1.9    Enforcement activity also takes places in the Public Protection team. This includes; food 
safety, health and safety, licensing, noise nuisance, pollution and through the dog warden.  
Closer working relationships on case work and key enforcement issues are also being 
developed.

1.10     The Council is currently updating the Corporate Enforcement Policy.  This is an 
overarching governance document that will be presented to Policy Development Panel in 
2018/19. It primarily covers all regulatory functions and will be developed by Public 
Protection.  Service operating procedures will relate to this document.  

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Do nothing.

2.2 Note the contents of the report and provide Members with a further update report in six 
months’ time to include;

 A report highlighting the range of enforcement activities
 A guide on reporting and assessment processes
 A statistical overview of the range of activities carried out including a summary of 

outcomes including prosecutions and fines.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 It is recommended that the contents of this report are noted and that members of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel have an up to date understanding of the changes to the 
approach in enforcement across Place Services.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The report will give an overview of the Council’s enforcement activities and the changes to 
the approach to enforcement in the Place Directorate.

4.2   It will give assurances that enforcement action is being taken appropriately and that 
resident and community concerns are being addressed.

4.3   It will increase understanding and awareness of what action can be taken, the staged 
approach.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitutional and Legal

Page 50



There are many pieces of legislation that span across Planning, Building Control, Housing, 
Environmental, Anti-Social Behaviour and Crime and Disorder functions.  The most 
appropriate tool or power will be used for each case to resolve the issue.

   
5.2      Corporate Priorities

5.2.1 The service covered in this report supports three of the Council’s Corporate Priorities; 

- To develop safer, stronger, healthier and more independent communities while 
protecting the most vulnerable

- To have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents to develop and 
thrive

- To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way

5.3  Crime and Disorder 

5.3.1 There are no direct implications from this report.  However, taking appropriate enforcement 
action is a key part of community safety and addressing crime and disorder concerns.

5.4 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.4.1 There are no direct implications from this report.  It should be noted that surveillance 
techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8 of the Human Rights Act which 
covers right to privacy. 

5.5 Financial 

5.5.1 There are no direct implications from this report.  It should be noted that some enforcement 
action results in financial penalties.  Enforcement action at the stage that a case is taken to 
court has necessary associated legal costs.

5.7        Reputation 

5.7.1 It is important that the Council demonstrates its commitment to taking appropriate and 
proportionate enforcement action and that it effectively deals with local concerns. 

5.8       Risk Management 

5.8.1 Enforcement action, particularly when it reaches court proceedings, is open to challenge.  It 
is important that there is robust evidence to take enforcement action beyond an initial 
warning stage.  There needs to be confidence in a case if it leads to court.  Any case with 
insufficient evidence which fails at court has significant cost implications for local authorities 
and officers have a duty to use public money appropriately.  Enforcement action should be 
in the best interest of the public and be proportional, consistent, transparent and targeted.

5.9 Staffing

5.9.1 There are no implications to staffing as a direct result of this report.  It should be noted 
that there have been structural and staffing changes to enable the council’s approach to 
enforcement to be strengthened.  

5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

Page 51



5.10.1 Stakeholder feedback, including Members and staff consultation was used to shape the 
service structural changes as well as shaping the process and procedures.  

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Services are provided for all those living, working or visiting the district.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:-  

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emily Holmes, Communities Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 76 44 69
Email: eholmes@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

Page 52



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director - Commercialisation (S151)

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Tuesday, 6 February 2018 

(Author: Sharon Hammond Head of Service, Revenues and Benefits)

Subject Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2017/18 update

Purpose: To update Members on the effect of changes made to the 2017/18 Council Tax 
Support scheme.  

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the content of the report is noted.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Local Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme replaced the former national Council Tax 
Benefit (CTB) scheme from April 2013.

1.2 The scheme for pensioners continues to be prescribed by government, and allows up to 
100% support against Council Tax liability. War Widows and War Widowers are also 
protected within South Holland’s CTS scheme.

1.3 Councils are required to review their CTS schemes for each financial year, and where any 
changes are proposed must carry out consultation with major preceptors and the public.

1.4 Following consultation in 2016, a number of changes to South Holland’s 2017/18 CTS 
scheme for working age claimants were agreed by Full Council on 18th January 2017.  
These changes were: - 

 Second Adult Rebate – Reduced to 20% in 2017/18 (10% in 2018/19 and zero from
2019/20)
(Prior to 1 April 2017 the scheme provided a reduction in Council Tax up to 25% to 
claimants whose own income as too high to receive CTS, but where other adults living 
in the household had a combined low income).

 Introduced a minimum level of Council Tax Support at £5 per week
(Prior to 1 April CTS was paid even if a person was only entitled to a few pence per 
week).

 Increased non-dependant deductions by 10%
A non-dependant is an adult living with a claimant but who is not dependent upon 
them, for example an adult son, daughter, mother, father or friend.  This change meant 
that those getting more money into the household would get less CTS.

 Restrict Council Tax Support to Band D Council Tax
From April 2017 anyone in a dwelling banded E, F, G or H receives CTS based on 
Council Tax level for a Band D dwelling.

Page 53

Agenda Item 13



 Reduced the Capital Limit to £8,000
Until April 2017, claimants who had up to £16,000 in capital could apply for CTS. 
Capital can be in the form of land, property, stocks, shares, premium bonds, money 
held in bank accounts etc.

 Reduced the lower capital threshold to £3,000
Until April 2017, capital up to £6,000 could be disregarded for the calculation of CTS.  
The reduction to £3,000 means that claimants with savings pay more towards their 
Council Tax.

 Reduced the maximum level of Council Tax Support available to 70%
Prior to April 2017 the maximum support was 75%.

 Limit backdating to 1 month
Reduced from 3 months.  This was in line with government changes for Housing 
Benefit.

 Remove family premium for new claims made
A family premium was previously awarded on all claims which included children.  This 
was in line with government changes to Housing Benefit.

1.5 As part of developing its forthcoming work programme, PMP has requested an update 
following introduction of these changes, specifically, has this saved the money that was 
intended and have local residents been affected by the changes.

2.0 CASELOAD

2.1 There will always be movement in caseload numbers, for a variety of reasons, not least 
fluctuation in the economic climate, seasonal work opportunities, changes in personal 
circumstances etc.  In respect of the changes to the CTS scheme in 2017/18, a number of 
the proposed changes were anticipated to remove claimants from entitlement, and reduce 
the amount paid to others.  

2.2 The following table shows the movement in caseload for working age CTS claimants at 
points during 2016 – 2017.

Caseload 31/03/2016 01/04/2016 31/12/2016 31/03/2017 01/04/2017 31/12/2017
Working Age 2853 2820 2734 2747 2449 2301
Reduction 2853 – 2820 = 33 2747 – 2449 = 298

Of particular relevance is the movement between financial years, demonstrating the greater 
impact as we move into 2017/18: - 

 Between 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 the caseload reduced by just 33 claims.
 Between 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 (i.e. 1st April 2017 being the date the 

changes were introduced), there was a reduction of 298 claimants.

Page 54



31 | 03 | 2016 01 | 04 | 2016 31 | 12 | 2016 31 | 03 | 2017 01 | 04 | 2017 31 | 12 | 2017
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

Working Age

3. CTS EXPENDITURE

3.1 The estimated reduction in CTS expenditure as a result of changes to the scheme was 
£187,000 (of which saving to South Holland DC would be around 11%, £20,000).

3.2 Final CTS expenditure in financial year 2016/17 was £4,310,003.  As at 31 December 
2017, forecasted CTS expenditure for 2017/18 is £4,088,231, a reduction of £221,771.

3.3 CTS is part of the collection fund process, and the cost is shared by the major Precepting 
authorities.  The cost to each authority for 2016/17 and, forecast as at 31 December 2017, 
for 2017/18 is shown in the following table.

CTS Expenditure
Lincolnshire CC

76%

Police and Crime 
Commissioner 

for Lincolnshire
13%

South Holland DC 
11%

2016/17 £4,310,002.75 £3,275,602.09 £560,300.36 £474,100.30
Forecast for 
2017/18 £4,088,231.30 £3,107,055.79 £531,470.07 £449,705.44

Forecast 
reduction in 
CTS between 
years (‘saving’) (£221,771.45) (£168,546.30) (£28,830.29) (£24,394.86)

3.4 As the table demonstrates, savings have been achieved.  We cannot however breakdown 
the extent of savings achieved directly as a result of the scheme changes, from other 
natural changes and reductions which will also have contributed to the overall position. 

4. IN-YEAR COLLECTION AND RECOVERY OF COUNCIL TAX

4.1 The collectable debit, on which in-year collection rate is measured, increases each year 
with rises to Council Tax.  In 2017/18 the effect of the changes to the CTS scheme also 
means that more Council Tax needs to be collected from those households who would in 
the previous year have received a higher amount of CTS, and therefore had less to pay.

Page 55



4.2 As at 31 December 2017, the in-year collection rate was 85.51%, compared to 86.07% at 
the same time in the last financial year.  The following table provides further information on 
the collectable debit and net payments.

31-Dec-16 31-Dec-17
Collectable Debit £41,119,310.89 £43,307,692.28
Net Payments £35,391,126.76 £37,032,507.62
In-Year Collection Rate 86.07% 85.51%

4.3 In comparing the financial years at this point, it is important to recognise that in recent years 
customers have been able to opt to pay their council Tax over 12 instalments (rather than 
10).  This has the effect of spreading a higher amount of Council Tax due to the end of the 
financial year.  In order to support customers and help with more manageable payment, 
arrangements the Council Tax team will also extend instalments to the end of the financial 
year.  It is anticipated that the in-year collection rate at 31 March will be in line with the 
target 97.2%, which recognised the potential impact following the changes to CTS.

4.4 The number of reminders, finals and summonses issued between April and December in 
2016/17 and 2017/18 is also provided for information.  The average amount per reminder 
issued has increased by £6.19, from £122.47 to £128.66, and for summonses by £23.84, 
from £590.61 to £614.45. This is as a result of the increase in the annual charge and 
therefore monthly instalment amounts and increased liability due to the changes in the CTS 
scheme. 

April – December
2016/17

April – December
2017/18

Number Value Number Value
Reminders, Final 
Notices

12,425 £1,521,681 12,545 £1,614,002

Summonses 2,912 £1,719,857 2,993 £1,839,043

4.5 Collection and recovery will continue over the final quarter of this year, and the final 
collection position for 2017/18 will be analysed after the end of the financial year. 

4.6 Arrears will continue to be collected in future financial years, however recovery will become 
increasing challenging as new-year Council Tax liabilities become due for payment.

4.7 For those CTS claimants that are on welfare benefits, the amount at which deduction can 
be taken is set at £3.70 per week.  By contrast, South Holland requires all working age 
claimants to pay at least 30% of the council tax liability.  The weekly amount due at 30% of 
a Band A property in South Holland is £5.94, and so the full amount cannot be recovered 
within a financial year, meaning more arrears are likely to be carried forward.

 
5. COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT NEW CLAIMS PROCESSING

5.1 In 2016/17, there were 1,626 new applications made for Council Tax Support.  Of these 
519 were unsuccessful (32%).
In 2017/18, up to 15 January 2018, there have been 1,306 new claims made so far this 
year, of which 556 have been unsuccessful (43%). The reasons for this are due to the 
further criteria which were introduced by the Council in April 2017 to the Council Tax 

Page 56



Support Scheme which has resulted in fewer people being eligible for support and therefore 
unsuccessful applications. 

5.2 From an administrative perspective the workload relating to processing of new claims 
remains comparable, however the outcomes are consistent with the reduction in caseload, 
which, as referred in section 2 of this report is now lower following introduction of the 
scheme changes in 2017/18.

6.0       REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

6.1 It is recommended that the content of this report is noted and that members of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel consider the effects of the changes made to the 2017/18 
Council Tax Support scheme.

7.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

7.1 To feed into future scheme development.

8.0 IMPLICATIONS

8.1 Financial

8.1.1 Based on current levels of expenditure, the cost of the CTS to South Holland District 
Council is around £450,000.   It is important to ensure that the Council operates an 
affordable scheme, now and in the future for its most vulnerable residents.

9.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

9.1 All

10.0 ACRONYMS

10.1 CTS – Council Tax Support
CTB – Council Tax Benefit 

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Sharon Hammond Head of Service, Revenues and Benefits
Telephone Number 01507 613306
Email: Sharon.hammond@cpbs.com

Key Decision: N 

Exempt Decision: N 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 6 February 2018

Author: Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer

Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel

Recommendation:

That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion; 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 
inclusion on its Work Programme.

1.2 Issues

1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated as new 
items are identified.

1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
shows:

 The name of the task group
 What it wants to achieve
 Key dates
 Membership of the task group
 When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 
Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.

Page 59

Agenda Item 14



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors 
with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of 
the decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the 
suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic 
links to the Council’s key aims and priorities. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the 
Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Christine Morgan
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme Calendar
Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2017/18

Page 60



 APPENDIX A

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 
ITEMS

Date of Meeting Agenda items

6 February 
2018

 Performance Overview Report – Quarter 3, 2017-18
 Enforcement– report addressing the various types of 

enforcement (e.g planning/building control/littering) and how 
these would be dealt with in the future, following the Authority-
wide reorganisation.

 What is the Authority doing to combat fly-tipping, and how is it 
investigated?  Report to include data on number of 
prosecutions and percentage of prosecutions to reports.  

 Streetscene – how is this undertaken and managed?
 Local Council Tax Support Scheme – has this saved the 

money that was intended and have local residents been 
affected by the changes?

 What is LCC’s policy with regard to the filling of pot holes?  
Officer from LCC’s Highways Department to provide further 
information. 

 Catering lease, South Holland Centre – To explain why the 
decision to renew the catering lease had to follow the urgent 
procedure (exempt report)

2 May 2018  Performance Overview Report – Quarter 4, 2017-18
 Emergency response – Report to detail SHDC’s procedure for 

dealing with an emergency response.
 Housing Allocations Policy – performance and amendments
 Section 106 monies – report detailing how the Authority 

proactively manages S106 agreements presently and how it 
will maximise opportunities in the future.

 Economic development – further information to be provided on 
what has been done, what lessons can be learned, and what is 
to be done in the future. 

 Commercialisation (1) – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  First report on Delivery 
Plan. 

 Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety and 
how it is being delivered through the various tiers of Groups 
and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed 
Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six months 
by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development. Last 
discussed at 7/11/17 meeting where information around CCTV 
and the Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Policy were 
considered – update to address issues raised at this meeting.

 Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – 
update on progress of recommendations (last update received 
7 November 2017)

 Voids Task Group – Update report on progress in actioning 
recommendations of the Task Group

Page 61



31 July 2018 
26 September 
2018



13 November 
2018



30 January 
2019



20 March 2019 
Future meetings 
2018/19 
municipal year, 
and items yet to 
be allocated.

 Commercialisation (2) – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  Second report, a 
general report around commercialisation.

 Cost of running the South Holland Centre – officers to be 
liaised with regarding timeline, and programmed into Panel’s 
Work Programme accordingly.

 What areas or risk existed within Public Services for cost 
shunting, and how could this be avoided?  Summer 2018 

 Are the financial savings predicted from various 
reorganisations being delivered?

 Health Inequality – Health Commissioning Group to be invited 
to a meeting to provide a presentation

For consideration later in the year

 Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed).

****************
To be considered annually:

The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final Report to 
Council on 21 January 2015.  Its first recommendation was:

That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has 
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the 
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance 
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance.

Membership of Task Group to be agreed and meet on an annual basis to 
consider the issue.

Page 62



APPENDIX B

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2017/2018

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group

To review the Spalding swimming pool and 
leisure centre, specifically:
 To consider performance, in relation to the 

contract, by the Authority and the 
contractor, particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and cleanliness, 
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment 
in the facilities;

 To look at the Council’s performance in 
monitoring the leisure facilities; and

 To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny, 
to inform future contracts and contract 
monitoring.

1 December 
2015

21 January 
2016

J R Astill
T A Carter
G K Dark 
(Chairman)
J L King
A M Newton

30 August 2016

To Cabinet 8 
November 2016

Response and 
update on 
progress PMP 
4/2/17, 16/5/17 
and 7/11/17.
Next update 
2/5/18.

Performance of the re-
letting of voids Task 
Group

To review the Council’s performance of re-
letting void properties and to make 
recommendations to help improve

15 June 
2016

3 October 
2016

GR Aley 
(Chairman)
MD Booth
CJTH Brewis
TA Carter

16 May 2017
To Cabinet 25 
July 2017

First update on 
progress PMP 
7/11/17, next 
update 2/5/18.

P
age 63



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group

Recommendation of the original Task Group to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of 
ensuring that the Council remained compliant 
with Charity Commission Guidance.

15 June 
2016

Date to be 
confirmed.

GR Aley
JR Astill
GK Dark
PC Foyster
AM Newton

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward.

Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision.

Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 
on the position regarding CCTV.  Performance 
information will be available on the new system 
in the future, once it becomes operational.  
The Task Group will remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will start to do 
this once the information becomes 
available.

6 November 
2012 

21 November 
2012 

B Alcock
M Howard
R M Rudkin
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman)

  
Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 
District 
Council 
Election 

Interim report to 
PMP 29 January 
2013 
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19 
February 2013.
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 26 March 
2013
Updates to PMP:
8 April 2014, and 
six-monthly 
thereafter. 

Leisure Facilities Task 
Group

To make recommendations, regarding the 
present and future leisure     provision in South 
Holland.

30 May 
2012

21 January 
2014

G R Aley 
(Chairman)
D Ashby

Interim report 
presented to joint 
PMP/PDP – 19 

P
age 64



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members of 
the Performance 
Monitoring and Policy 
Development Panels. 

1. By establishing what leisure provision the 
District Council presently provides, 
examining costs, resident satisfaction and 
competitiveness in order to identify ways of 
increasing income or reducing expenditure;

2. To understand what the District Council 
wishes to provide and what the public and 
major employers need; 

3. To examine the options for future provision 
either to be supplied by the Council, the 
private sector or shared management.

Agreed at PMP 25 November 2014 – A date 
for completion of the Business Plan looking at 
Leisure Services provision, being drawn 
together by the Community Development and 
Health Manager, be confirmed by the Assistant 
Director Community, and that a joint meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 
Development Panel, for consideration of the 
document, be arranged.

Following consideration of the update to PMP 
on 3 March 2015 (PDP members were invited 

A Casson
G K Dark
R Perkins
S Slade
E Sneath
S Wilkinson

Lead Officer: 
Phil Adams

Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 
District 
Council 
Election

August 2014 
To Cabinet 7 
October 2014
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 25 
November 2014
Update on leisure 
options to PMP 3 
March 2015 (PDP 
members to 
attend PMP 
meeting)

P
age 65



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

to attend), it was agreed that leisure provision 
must be a priority for the Council, and must be 
considered as a priority by the next 
administration following the District Council 
election.

The effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and for the 
future.

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

To be confirmed

P
age 66


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	8 Key Decision Plan
	Plan

	9 Quarter 3 2017-18 Performance Overview Report
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 3 2017-18 Performance Overview Report

	10 Catering Lease South Holland Centre
	11 Street Scene
	12 Enforcement Update
	13 Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2017/18 update
	14 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


